
King's Lynn Area 
Consultative 
Committee
Agenda

Monday, 15th January, 2018
at 6.00 pm

in the

Council Chamber
Town Hall
Saturday Market Place
King’s Lynn





King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, Norfolk, PE30 1EX
Telephone: 01553 616200
Fax: 01553 691663

KING'S LYNN AREA CONSULTATIVE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA

DATE: MONDAY, 15TH JANUARY, 2018

VENUE: EDUCATION ROOM - TOWN HALL, SATURDAY 
MARKET PLACE, KING'S LYNN PE30 5DQ

TIME: 6.00 pm

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 6 - 13)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting held on 19 
October 2017.

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Please indicate if there are any interests which should be declared.  A 
declaration of an interest should indicate the nature of the interest (if not 
already declared on the Register of Interests) and the agenda item to which it 
relates.  If a disclosable pecuniary interest is declared, the Member should 
withdraw from the room whilst the matter is discussed.

These declarations apply to all Members present, whether the Member is part 
of the meeting, attending to speak as a local Member on an item or simply 
observing the meeting from the public seating area.

4.  URGENT BUSINESS 

To consider any business which, by reason of special circumstances, the 
Chairman proposes to accept as urgent under Section 100(b)(4)(b) of the 
Local Government Act, 1972.



5.  MEMBERS PRESENT PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER 34 

Members wishing to speak pursuant to Standing Order 34 should inform the 
Chairman of their intention to do so and on what items they wish to be heard 
before the meeting commences.  Any Member attending the meeting under 
Standing Order 34 will only be permitted to speak on those items which have 
been previously notified to the Chairman.

6.  CHAIRMAN'S CORRESPONDENCE (IF ANY) 

7.  UPDATE FROM FREEBRIDGE COMMUNITY HOUSING 

Alex Dixon from Freebridge Community Housing will give an update to the 
Committee.

8.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

To consider passing the following resolution:

“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act”.

9.  EXEMPT - KING'S LYNN WATERFRONT 

The Committee will receive an update on the Waterfront in King’s Lynn.

10.  EXEMPT - KING'S LYNN ARTS CENTRE (Pages 14 - 25)

A copy of the report which has been considered by the Regeneration & 
Development Panel at the meeting held on 10 January 2018 is attached.

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION

11.  UPDATE ON KING'S LYNN SPECIAL EXPENSE CHARGE (Pages 26 - 30)

To consider the attached report and to make appropriate recommendations.

12.  CABINET'S FORWARD DECISION LIST (Pages 31 - 33)

To consider the Cabinet’s Forward Decision List and to identify any items the 
Committee wishes to add to its work programme.

13.  COMMITTEE'S WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 34 - 35)



The Committee is asked to consider items for a future Work Programme for 
2018/2019.

14.  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting of the Committee will be held on Monday 26 March 2018 at 
6.00pm in the Council Chamber, Town Hall, King’s Lynn.

To: Members of the King's Lynn Area Consultative Committee

Councillors Miss L Bambridge, Mrs S Buck, J Collop, Mrs S Collop (Vice-
Chairman), G Howman, C Joyce, G McGuinness, G Middleton, P Rochford, 
M Shorting, T Smith, M Taylor, A Tyler (Chairman), Mrs M Wilkinson and 
T Wing-Pentelow

For Further information, please contact:

Kathy Wagg
Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk
King’s Court, Chapel Street
King’s Lynn PE30 1EX



1

BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING’S LYNN & WEST NORFOLK

KING'S LYNN AREA CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE

Minutes from the Meeting of the King's Lynn Area Consultative Committee 
held on Thursday, 19th October, 2017 at 6.00 pm in the Council Chamber, 

Town Hall, Saturday Market Place, King's Lynn PE30 5DQ

PRESENT: Councillor A Tyler (Chairman)
Councillors Miss L Bambridge, Mrs S Collop, G Howman, C Joyce, G Middleton, 

M Taylor and Mrs M Wilkinson

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J Collop and T 
Smith.

2  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes of the meeting held on 12 September 2017 were agreed 
as a correct record.

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest.

4  URGENT BUSINESS 

There was no urgent business under Standing Order 7.

5  MEMBERS PRESENT PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER 34 

There were no members present under Standing Order 34.

6  CHAIRMAN'S CORRESPONDENCE (IF ANY) 

There was no Chairman’s correspondence to report.

7  PARISH PARTNERSHIP SCHEME 

The Executive Director – Commercialisation introduced the report and 
explained that the Committee’s Terms of Reference had been 
amended to allow it to consider small scale highway improvement 
schemes within the unparished areas of King’s Lynn and West Lynn, 
under the County Council’s Parish Partnership Programme (PPP).  The 
PPP allowed Parish Councils to bid for match funding for small scale 

6

Agenda Item 2



2

highway improvement schemes in their area.  In the unparished area of 
King’s Lynn and West Lynn, KLACC would now consider any scheme 
put forward.  If KLACC decided to support a particular scheme, the 
recommendation would be passed to Cabinet for their consideration.

It was explained that one scheme had been put forward for 2018/19.  
This was a scheme for two Speed Awareness Messaging (SAM) signs 
to be located on either Vancouver Avenue, Goodwins Road, or 
Tennyson Road.  The proposed signs showed the speed of vehicles if 
they exceeded the limit, with the legend ‘slow down’ as part of the unit.  
There were 5 locations on Vancouver Avenue, Goodwins Road and 
Tennyson Road which could accommodate the signs, which were 
moveable, and should only be at each location once every 3 months.  
Further locations would be agreed with Highways as required.  
Arrangements were being put in place with local residents to charge 
the signs and move them as required.

In relation to the financial implications of the proposal, it was reported 
that the costs of the scheme would be:

2 SAM signs @ £3,500 each  = £7,000

KLWNBC Match finding required = £3,500

It was explained that in the same way that Parishes would fund 
highway works in their areas through precepts, funding for the signs 
would need to come out of King’s Lynn Special Expenses.

The Chairman suggested that if the Committee decided to support the 
proposal then recommendation 2 be deferred and considered with the 
Special Expenses item on the agenda.

The Chairman introduced Andy Wallace from Norfolk County Council to 
answer any technical questions that the Committee might have.

In response to queries, Andy Wallace explained that the signs would 
be battery powered.  Local volunteers would charge the batteries and 
change the location of signs. 

Councillor Middleton explained that each County Councillor had been 
allocated a highway budget of £6,000 which they could spend within 
their division.  Councillors Kemp and Smith had pledged to put their 
budget towards reinstating the 7.5 tonne limit on the B1144.  Therefore 
there would not be any funds available to put towards the SAM signs.  
It was explained that the budget for County Councillors would be 
reviewed year on year.                                                                                                     

Councillor Mrs Wilkinson expressed concern that if the County 
Councillor had allocated their budget to one area, what happened to 
the other areas.

7



3

Councillor Middleton outlined how he had gone about allocating his 
budget but added that it was up to the individual Councillor to prioritise.

The Leader advised that a Legal Order in respect of weight restrictions 
was expensive to impose, but it was down to the choice of the County 
Councillor concerned how they spent their budget.

Councillor Bambridge informed the Committee that another speed-
watch session took place recently and in an hour and a half, 39 
vehicles were caught speeding.

The Executive Director – Commercial Services advised the Committee 
that the SAM signs would be able to collect data in terms of what 
speeds people were travelling.

Andy Wallace informed the Committee that the company who supplied 
the signs would give training to the volunteers on how to use the signs, 
charge them, etc.

Councillors Miss Bambridge and the Chairman informed the Committee 
that ideally residents wanted a crossing at the Avenue Road junction 
however there was a slight bend in the road.  Another alternative for a 
crossing was close to the railway lines but this would need to be an 
alternative scheme.

The Committee agreed to defer recommendation 2 to the next item of 
business on the agenda, as options on how to fund the scheme had 
been outlined.

The Committee then made the following recommendations to Cabinet:

(1) That the King’s Lynn Advisory Consultative Committee supports 
the proposal for SAM signage in King’s Lynn.

(2) That the Chairman and Councillor J Collop be nominated to 
represent the Committee’s view to Cabinet.

8  KING'S LYNN SPECIAL EXPENSES 2018/2019 - REPORT TO 
FOLLOW 

The Committee was reminded that one of its Terms of Reference was 
“to act as a consultative forum on the funding raised by, and utilisation 
of the King’s Lynn Special Expenses, and to offer input on priorities for 
this expenditure and if appropriate the level of funds to be raised”.

The Committee was informed that the Local Government Finance Act 
1992 defined a Local Authority’s Special Expenses.  It stated that 
Special Expenses were any expenses incurred by the authority in 
performing in a part of its area, a function performed elsewhere by a 
Parish Council.

8



4

The Committee noted that Special Expenses were currently charged 
for:

 Footway lighting
 Play areas
 Community centres
 Closed churchyards
 Allotments
 Pavilions
 Dog bins
 Open spaces; and
 Bus shelters.

It was explained that the total cost of Special Expenses was met by the 
Council tax payers of King’s Lynn.  The annual charge to residents was 
made through an addition to the Council tax bill.

It was reported that during 2017, the Committee reviewed elements of 
the special expenses charge and a summary of recommendations 
were outlined in the report.

The Committee’s attention was drawn to Section 1.4 of the report and it 
was explained that £46.59 was currently being charged for Band D for 
2017/18.

The Executive Director – Finance explained that during 2017, the 
Committee had reviewed elements of the Special Expenses charge 
and a summary of the recommendations made on the topics was 
reported.

It was explained that the special expenses charged in 2017/2018 would 
be used as the basis for the calculation for 218/2019.   The estimates 
had been reviewed and updated to reflect current costs and there was 
an estimated reduction in costs of £1,040.

The Executive Director – Finance highlighted the main movements as 
set out in the report in relation to:

 Footway lighting 

Councillor Joyce stated that he was surprised to see a 30% increase in 
electricity costs.  He asked for assurance that going forward on-going 
electricity costs should be balanced out by the Refit programme.

The Leader explained that the Refit programme would look at other 
alternative technologies when they became available.  

The Chairman asked whether the Refit programme would look at what 
lights were actually needed or not.

9



5

The Executive Director – Commercial Services advised that a member 
of staff would be assessing all the street lights.  It was explained that 
as the light levels would be higher it might be possible for there to be 
less lights in certain locations.  

The Executive Director asked that if any member had any areas where 
street lights could be reduced or needed to be increased then to let him 
know.

 Community Centre costs 

The Executive Director – Finance explained that a business rates 
valuation specialist had been appointed by the Council to review the 
valuation of all the council assets following the business rates 
revaluation from 1 April 2017 and this would include community centres 
and pavilions.

Councillor Joyce referred to the business rates of the Dutton Pavilion at 
£21,000 as opposed to the business rates of King’s Lynn Football Club 
which was £9,100.  He added that the Football Club had changing 
rooms, a bar and restaurant but the business rates were only half the 
cost of the Dutton Pavilion.  The Executive Director – Finance 
explained that this would be referred to the specialist to investigate as 
part of their review.  

Councillor Joyce also referred to relief for groups using the South Lynn 
Community Centre.

The Committee was informed that the Council could not award itself 
rate reliefs that might be awarded to charities.  The Executive Director 
– Finance further explained that valuations for business rates were 
complex, which was why the Council had engaged a specialist to carry 
out the review.  The Council can, however, look at how the lease could 
be structured, to reflect the uses and take advantage of reliefs if 
possible.

Councillor Joyce queried whether the pavilions and community centres 
should be charged to King’s Lynn Special Expenses.  

The Leader referred to the pavilion at Terrington St Clement, where the 
whole cost was met by the Parish Council and was used by the local 
football team but also away teams.  

Councillor Joyce suggested setting up a charity for the King’s Lynn 
facilities to be investigated.  The Executive Director – 
Commercialisation explained that this had been looked at but the costs 
did not stack up.

 Allotment costs

10



6

The Executive Director – Finance reported that allotment costs had 
reduced by £3,770 mainly due to a reduction in the maintenance 
budget.  It was estimated that additional income of £14,970 would be 
raised in 2018/19.

 Open Spaces costs

The Executive Director – Finance pointed out an error and it should 
read hedge trimming was twice a year rather than 12 times.

Councillor Mrs S Collop stated that the Borough Council should not be 
cutting Norfolk County Council grass any more times than what the 
Council was being paid for.  

The Executive Director – Commercial Services advised that Norfolk 
County Council grass cutting was not charged to King’s Lynn Special 
Expenses.  He also advised that the Borough Council did not cut grass 
on Freebridge land.  He undertook to send Councillor Mrs Wilkinson 
and Howman a map of the public open space in their area and who 
was responsible for cutting grass.

The Leader explained that grass cutting was an emotive subject but he 
wanted King’s Lynn to have the best appearance it could afford.  He 
added that it was much better to cut the grass together than leave NCC 
grass uncut.

Councillor Middleton added that most Parish Councils were of the 
same opinion and if they wanted the grass cut more then they often 
had to find extra money for it to be carried out.

 Bus Shelter costs

It was noted that bus shelter costs had decreased by £2,040 due to 
estimated additional income from advertising.

The Committee’s attention was drawn to paragraph 2.7 of the report, 
where it explained that the total council tax support grant available 
would reduce in 2018/19 by 32% in line with the reduction in the 
Council’s overall revenue support grant.

The Committee noted the current estimate of Special Expenses charge 
for 2018/19, which was subject to change as the budgets were 
reviewed during the budget setting process.

Public Toilets

The Committee discussed whether both sets of toilets in the Walks 
should remain open or whether one set should be closed.  The 
Committee also discussed the proposal to charge 80% of costs to 
special expenses.  Some Members of the Committee felt that the 80% 
charge was too high given the footfall for larger events which were held 

11



7

in the Walks.  It was explained that the Borough did receive income 
when the events were held.

The Executive Director – Commercialisation explained that to rebuild a 
set of toilets would be in the region of £75,000 to £100,000.

Councillor Mrs Collop informed the Committee that the E&C Panel had 
recommended that the toilets at Gaywood remained open.

The Chairman added that he considered that Gaywood should have a 
set of toilets.

The Executive Director – Commercialisation explained that this was an 
emotive subject but the toilets at Gaywood had been in a terrible 
condition before their closure.  He added that they had been closed for 
7 months now and there had not been many complaints regarding their 
closure.  In relation to the £10,000 costs for the toilets, he explained 
that there were a lot of other things that the money could be spent on in 
King’s Lynn.

Councillor Joyce agreed that the Gaywood toilets were far from 
adequate and he suggested that the Executive Director could carry out 
some realistic costings for their replacement in the future.

Councillor Middleton proposed that the Gaywood toilets should remain 
closed, with the two sets of toilet at the Walks remaining open with an 
80% charge to King’s Lynn Special Expenses.  This was seconded by 
Councillor Joyce who added that costs and plans be evaluated and 
reported back to the Committee on building a new set of facilities.  This 
was put to the vote and carried.

Increase in Special Expenses Charge

Councillor Joyce proposed that the Band D charge should be increased 
to £2.50.  This would be to help offset the reduction in the revenue 
support grant and to allow a small amount of money to be used to 
market Community Centres and other priorities to be identified by 
KLACC.  This increase would encompass the increase for the Parish 
Partnership Scheme and Public Toilets.  This was seconded by 
Councillor Middleton and agreed by the Committee.

Recommendations:

The Committee was invited to make recommendations to Cabinet on 
the King’s Lynn Special Expenses, in line with their current terms of 
reference.

Councillor Mrs Collop, as Ward Member, asked for her vote to be 
recorded against recommendation (3).

12



8

(1) That the underspend reported at 2017/2018 year end on 
charges made to King’s Lynn Special Expenses be transferred to the 
reserves to provide matched funding for future bids against the Parish 
Partnership Scheme.

(2) That the Parish Partnership Funding for 2018/19 is recovered 
over 5 years –as outlined in option (a) of the report.

(3) That in relation to public toilets, the Gaywood toilets are to 
remain closed but costs and plans be evaluated and reported back to 
the Committee on building a new set of facilities.  The Broadwalk and 
Management Building toilets in the Walks to remain open with 80% of 
costs charged to Special Expenses.

(4) The Committee recommends an increase of £2.50 in Special 
Expenses resulting in a Band D charge of £49.09 which encompasses 
the increase for the Parish Partnership Scheme and Public Toilets.

(5) That Councillors G Middleton be nominated to represent the 
Committee’s view to Cabinet. 

(6) That Councillor J Collop be nominated to speak to Cabinet 
under Standing Order 34.

9  COMMITTEE'S WORK PROGRAMME AND CABINET'S FORWARD 
DECISION LIST 

The Committee noted the Work Programme and Cabinet’s Forward 
Decision List.

10  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting of the Committee would be held on Monday, 15 
January 2017 at 6.00pm in the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Saturday 
Market Place, King’s Lynn.

The meeting closed at 8.30 pm

13



Document is Restricted

14

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



 

 

REPORT TO: King’s Lynn Area Consultative Committee 

DATE: 15 January 2018 

TITLE: Update on Special Expense Charge for King’s Lynn 

TYPE OF REPORT: Policy development 

PORTFOLIO(S): Leader 

REPORT AUTHOR: Stuart Ashworth – Assistant Director – Environment & Planning 
Lorraine Gore – Executive Director – Finance Services 

OPEN  WILL BE SUBJECT 
TO A FUTURE 
CABINET REPORT: 

Yes 
 

 
REPORT SUMMARY  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT/SUMMARY: 

 
To provide an update on the options for the Committee in its consideration of the King’s Lynn 
Special Expenses for the year 2018/2019, following the recommendation of the 19 October 
KLACC meeting to increase the Band D charge by £2.50 to be spent on future priorities in 
King’s Lynn.  
 

KEY ISSUES: 

 
The terms of reference for the King’s Lynn Area Consultative Committee (KLACC) describe 
one of its roles as acting as a consultative forum, on the funding raised by, and utilisation of 
the King’s Lynn Special Expenses, and to offer input on priorities for this expenditure and if 
appropriate the level of funds to be raised. This will need to be a recommendation to 
Cabinet.  
 
Any recommendations will need to be made in full consideration of the implications on the 
Special Expenses charge.  This report updates KLACC on the implications of the additional 
£2.50 to be spent on other priorities agreed as a recommendation at the 19 October 
meeting. 
 

OPTIONS CONSIDERED: 

 
1. Retain the previous proposal (4) to recommend to Cabinet an additional £2.50 on 

Band D Special Expenses, which encompasses the increase for the Parish 
Partnership scheme and Public Toilets.  

2. Remove the previous proposal (4) to recommend to Cabinet an additional £2.50 on 
Band D Special Expenses, which encompasses the increase for the Parish 
Partnership scheme and Public Toilets. 

  

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
1. That the Committee amends its previous recommendation on Special Expenses, 

made at the 19 October meeting, by removing proposal (4) for an additional £2.50 on 
Band D Special Expenses, which encompasses the increase for the Parish 
Partnership scheme and Public Toilets. 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
Making recommendations on the utilisation of Special Expenses for King’s Lynn was within 
the original terms of reference of the Committee.  
 

 

26

Agenda Item 11



 

 

 

1.  Introduction 
 
1.1 One of the Terms of Reference of KLACC, is “to act as a consultative forum on the 

funding raised by, and utilisation of the King’s Lynn Special Expenses, and to offer 
input on priorities for this expenditure and if appropriate the level of funds to be 
raised.” 

 
1.2 At the meeting of 19 October KLACC made the following recommendations in 

relation to Special Expenses: 
 

(1) That the underspend reported at 2017/2018 year end on charges made to King’s 
Lynn Special Expenses be transferred to the reserves to provide matched 
funding for future bids against the Parish Partnership Scheme.  
 

(2) That the Parish Partnership Funding for 2018/19 is recovered over 5 years –as 
outlined in option (a) of the report.  

 
(3) That in relation to public toilets, the Gaywood toilets are to remain closed but 

costs and plans be evaluated and reported back to the Committee on building a 
new set of facilities. The Broadwalk and Management Building toilets in the 
Walks to remain open with 80% of costs charged to Special Expenses.  

 
(4) The Committee recommends an increase of £2.50 in Special Expenses resulting 

in a Band D charge of £49.09 which encompasses the increase for the Parish 
Partnership Scheme and Public Toilets.  

 
(5) That Councillor G Middleton be nominated to represent the Committee’s view to 

Cabinet.  
 

(6) That Councillor J Collop be nominated to speak to Cabinet under Standing Order 
34. 
 

1.3 With regards recommendation (4), the proposed increase in £2.50, there is a specific 
issue which is discussed in more detail below. 

 
 
1.4  To recap, the total cost of Special Expenses is met by the council tax payers of 

King’s Lynn. The annual charge to the residents is made through an addition to the 
council tax bill. The table below details the Special Expenses charge 2018/2019 for 
King’s Lynn. 
 

 

Charge 
2018/2019  

 
 £  

Footway Lighting 27,454 

Play Areas 35,003 

Community Centres 38,020 

Closed Churchyards 10,020 

Allotments 7,080 

Pavilions 28,130 

Dog bins 12,140 

Public Conveniences 14,190 

27



 

 

 

 
 

On the 19 December 2017 the Government published the Referendum Principles relating to 
council tax increases for 2018/2019.  The principles for 2018-19 in respect of shire district 
authorities state: 
  
For 2018-19, the relevant basic amount of council tax of a shire district authority 
is excessive if the authority’s relevant basic amount of council tax for 2018-19 is — 
 
(a)  3%, or more than 3%, greater than its relevant basic amount of council  
tax for 2017-18; and  
 
(b)  more than £5  greater than its relevant basic amount of council tax for  
2017-18. 
 
The referendum principles apply to the combined increase in council tax for special 
expenses and the borough council tax. 
 
The table below illustrates the comparison of a 3% increase or £5 increase on the borough 
council tax (band D) to identify which is the greater. 
 

Borough council tax 2017/2018 (band D) £116.87 

Borough council tax 2018/2019 with 3% increase (band D) £120.38 

Borough council tax 2018/2019 with £5 increase (band D) £121.87 

 
The proposed increase in the borough council tax is £4.50 to £121.37 (band D) as when 
combined with the increase in the overall Borough-wide special expenses of £0.36 (band D), 
see table below, this gives an overall increase of £4.86.  The overall increase therefore 
complies with the referendum principles. 
 

Total special expenses charge 2017/2018 (after council tax support 
grant) 

£629,940 

Equivalent 2017/2018 band D charge £12.92 

  

Total special expenses charge 2018/2019 (after council tax support 
grant) 

£656,840 

Equivalent 2018/2019 band D charge £13.28 

  

Parish Partnership – Traffic Calming 700 

Open Spaces 301,885 

Total 474,622 

  Less Council Tax Support Grant (16,250) 

  Net Total Charged as Special Expenses 458,372 

  Taxbase 2018/2019 10,048.8 

  Band D Charge 2018/2019 45.61 
 
Band D Charge 2017/2018 46.23 
 
Net reduction from 2017/2018 -0.62 

28



 

 

Increase in council tax charge for special expenses (band D)  £0.36 

Borough increase in council tax (band D) £4.50 

Total increase in council tax £4.86 

 
If the proposed £2.50 increase in King’s Lynn special expenses band D from £46.23 to 
£48.73 (a figure refined following the October meeting from the previously reported £49.09) 
is agreed this will result in the overall increase in council tax for 2018/2019 breaching the 
referendum principles, see table below. 
 

Total special expenses charge 2017/2018 (after council tax support 
grant) 

£629,940 

Equivalent 2017/2018 band D charge £12.92 

  

Total special expenses charge 2018/2019 (after council tax support 
grant) 

£688,150 

Equivalent 2018/2019 band D charge £13.91 

  

Increase in council tax charge for special expenses (band D) £0.99 

Borough increase in council tax (band D) £4.50 

Total increase in council tax £5.49 

 
 
2. Options/Issues 
 

2.1 Retain the previous proposal (4) to recommend to Cabinet an additional £2.50 on 

Band D Special Expenses, which encompasses the increase for the Parish 

Partnership scheme and Public Toilets. The Committee could decide to continue to 

request this raise with Cabinet, but given the fact this will increase council tax over 

and above the referendum threshold, it has no realistic chance of success, given the 

need for a referendum.  

2.2 Remove the previous proposal (4) to recommend to Cabinet an additional £2.50 on 

Band D Special Expenses, which encompasses the increase for the Parish 

Partnership scheme and Public Toilets. This is considered to be the sensible option 

and would prevent having to recommend to Cabinet a proposal requiring a local 

referendum due to the increase in Special Expenses.  

 
3.  Financial Implications 
 
3.1 There will be financial implications associated with the spending of Special 

Expenses. In this specific case, the implications of raising Special Expenses by 
£2.50, although only a proposal by KLACC, would have ramifications in terms of 
taking local Council Tax levels over the £5 threshold, thereby requiring a referendum.  

 
 
4. Conclusion 
 
4.1 As part of their terms of reference the King’s Lynn Area Consultative Committee 

(KLACC) can make recommendations on priorities for the expenditure and if 
appropriate the level of funds to be raised through Special Expenses within King’s 
Lynn. 

 

29



 

 

4.2 The report to the October Committee meeting, set out the range of options for 
Special Expenses, and was based on the Committee’s work on the various topic 
areas during the last year. At that meeting KLACC made a number of 
recommendations (set out earlier in this report), which included recommending an 
increase of £2.50 in Special Expenses resulting in a Band D charge of £48.73. 

 
4.3 However, this level of increase could push the overall Council Tax increase over the 

£5 threshold triggering a referendum, which is simply not realistic, and the Committee 
is asked to reconsider this particular element of their recommendations.  

 
 
5. Recommendation 
 
5.1  That the Committee amends its previous recommendation on Special Expenses, 

made at the 19 October meeting, by removing proposal (4) for a proposed additional 

£2.50 on Band D Special Expenses for King’s Lynn, which encompasses the 

increase for the Parish Partnership scheme and Public Toilets. 

 

30



FORWARD DECISIONS LIST

Date of 
meeting

Report title Description 
of report

Key or 
Non Key 
Decision

Decision Maker Cabinet  Member and Lead 
Officer

List of 
Background 
Papers 

Public or Private 
Meeting

6 February 
2018

Budget 2018/19 Key Council Leader
Exec Dir – L Gore

Public

Capital Programme 2018/23 Key Council Leader
Exec Dir -  L Gore

Public

King’s Lynn Property 
Acquisition

Key Cabinet Corporate Projects and Assets
Exec Dir - C Bamfield

Private - Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

NORA Phase 4 Key Council Corporate Projects and Assets
Exec Dir - C Bamfield

Private - Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

Civil Penalties and Rent 
Repayment Orders – 
Housing and Planning Act 
2016, Housing Act 2004

Non Cabinet Housing & Community
Chief Executive

Public

Major Housing Phase 3 – 
Enabling Work for Lynnsport 
1

Key Council Corporate Projects and Assets
Exec Dir - C Bamfield

Private - Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 

31

A
genda Item

 12



information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

Economic Development and 
Fenland DC

Non Cabinet Performance and Economic 
Development
Exec Dir - C Bamfield

Private - Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 1 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

Hunstanton One Public 
Estate

Key Cabinet Corporate Projects and Assets
Exec Dir - C Bamfield

Public

Date of 
meeting

Report title Description 
of report

Key or 
Non Key 
Decision

Decision Maker Cabinet  Member and Lead 
Officer

List of 
Background 
Papers 

Public or Private 
Meeting

13 March 
2018

Spec Unit – NORA Key Cabinet Corporate Projects and Assets
Exec Dir – C Bamfield

Private - Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

Lynnsport Community 
Facilities

Key Council Corporate Projects and Assets
Exec Dir - C Bamfield

Public

32



Riverfront Regeneration 
Update

Key Council Corporate Projects and Assets
Exec Dir - C Bamfield

Private - Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

Housing Infrastructure Fund Key Cabinet Housing & Community
Chief Executive

Public

Accelerated Construction 
Scheme

Key Cabinet Housing & Community
Chief Executive

Public

King’s Lynn Property 
Acquisition

Key Cabinet Corporate Projects and Assets
Exec Dir - C Bamfield

Private - Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

East Wisbech Broad 
Concept Plan

Non Council Development
Exec Dir – G Hall

Public

Date of 
meeting

Report title Description 
of report

Key or 
Non Key 
Decision

Decision Maker Cabinet  Member and Lead 
Officer

List of 
Background 
Papers 

Public or Private 
Meeting

17 April 
2018

33



04/01/2018 

 

 

KING’S LYNN AREA CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 

 WORK PROGRAMME 2018/2019 

 

 
15 January 2018 
 

 King’s Lynn Waterfront 

 Update on the Arts Centre 

 Update from Freebridge Community Housing 

 Special Expenses 

 Update on Parish Partnership Scheme 
 

26 March 2018 
 

 Policing in King’s Lynn – 6 monthly update 

 Parish Partnership Scheme  

 Bus Shelters – Business Plan 

 Update on the Rail Service 
 

19 June 2018 
 
 
 

10 September 2018 
 

 Policing in King’s Lynn – 6 monthly update 
 
 

29 October 2018  
 

 Special Expenses 

 Parish Partnership Scheme 
 
 
 

34

A
genda Item

 13



04/01/2018 

15 January 2019 
 
 
 
 

25 March 2019 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

35


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	10 EXEMPT - King's Lynn Arts Centre
	11 Update on King's Lynn Special Expense Charge
	12 Cabinet's Forward Decision List
	13 Committee's Work Programme

